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Present and Original Physical Appearance: Fort Constitution, as built in 
^808, was apparently a square shaped fortress measuring about 145' on a side 
A single bastion, about 32 x 22 feet, projected from the southwest corner 
on the land side and afforded flanking fire for the 10-foot wide arched 
gateway located in the center of the west wall. A keystone with the date 
1808 is in the center of fhe arch.A. second" anc-Eoall^rx gate;s- the s&llyipbrt, 
is situated in the ..north'wall: The original 1808 walls,--now standing on 
three sides of the fort, are comprised of rubble stone topped by red-colored 
brick. Four brick structures the exrS name building, laundry, officers' barra 
and enlisted men's barracks once stood parallel to the south wall and the 
commanding officer's house was situated near the center of the east wall. 
All of these structures are gone and oril-y portions !of the$r foundations 
remain. The brick magazine with its arched ceiling does exist as well as a 
sentry room.

In 1862-66 alterations were begun but never completed in an effort to 
modernize Fort Constitution. The 1808 brick and stone wall on the east side 
was demolished and replaced by a new granite wall built at a lower level, 
beyond the 1808 wall, and nearer the water. The new granite wall also arched 
partially around the outside of the 1808 walls on the north and south sides. 
Never fully completed, the 1862-66 walls contained casemates for about 30 
cannons.

Considerably reduced in activity after the Civil War, Fort Constitution toda 
is comprised of the foundations of incomplete alterations from different 
periods, including the Spanish-American War and World Wars I and II, The aer
- photograph shows-'the 18'62 -walls'around the-point:-To the'' :-right of the apex 
the wall-is incomplete; in front of that opening is a rocky ledge. A road 
bisects the old fort; foundations of - old -barracks are-on either side'; rThe 
small 1808 magazine is to the right of the road; to the right of the gate-
'Way is;the sentry room. The bastion is on the southwest corner. An old mines 
building is located between the 1808 and 1862 walls pn the north side. Just 
Beyond the west wall are Coast Guard buildings.'1'Since the 19th century "walls 
are in poor condition, the fort has been tightly fenced to. prevent visitors 
from wandering into what has been a hazardous area. Recently, the Division o 
Parks has re-evaluated this site and work is now in progress to make the 
Fort accessible to the public by this June. Intrepretive signs will give the 
visitor a feeling for the changing kinds of fortification over a period of 
some 300 years.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Military: As-a result of information brought by Paul*Revere on December 13,
1774 from Boston to the Committee of Safety in Portsmouth, the Sons of 
Liberty planned an assault which resulted in the capture of Fort William an 
Mary, December 14, 1774. This uprising against the general authority of the 
King was probably the first oveMrt act of the American Revolution. Nothing 
remains of this fort constructed in the 17th century and repaired as 
needed in laterxe'ars except the base of its walls which were used when 
Fort Constitution was built on the same site in 1808. Later modified in 
1862-66.Port Constitution now lies in ruins. However, it serves to remind 
us that here, from 1632^txT 1950, was an armed fort.

Fort William and Mary was situated on a rocky ledge on the northeast point 
of New Castle Island and about 200 yeard south of the main channel of the 
Piscataqua River, thus guarding the approaches to Portsmouth Harbor. As 
early as 1632 there is indication that a fort had been built on the north­ 
east point ofcjNew ;Castle: ,Island. By 1694 th^j harborjdefense^ occupying, .the 
point was known as Castle William and Mary in honor of the King and Queen 
brought tp,|the thrpne by- the :,Glorious Revolution, in ,1,688,. . , ) .,.. ....,.,. u .,

On December 13, 1774 Paul Revere brought the news of a Br^ttsh.embargo on 
munitions of ware and the probable arrival of a large garrison of British 
troops at Castle William and*Mary. This news raised an alarm in the town. 
The next day the Portsmouth Sons of Liberty, with others from New Castle 
and Rye, in all about 400 men, under the leadership of the Committee of 
Safety embarked in two boats for New Castle Island. Coming as something of 
a surprise in a time of peace, the commander of the Captain John Cochran, 
realized that he could do nothing with his garrison of five men. Therefore 
he prudently discharged several cannons well over the heads of the advancing 
multitude, and permitted the fort and military stores to be taken without 
further resistance. One hundred barrels of powder, 60 stand of small arms, 
and 16 cannon were removed over a period of two days and carried to Durham, 
New Hampshire. From here the supplies were distributed throughout neighboring 
towns and eventually was used on the British regiments in the Battle of 
Bunker Hill, June 17, 1775. During four months in the summer of 1775 Fort 
William and Mary also served as a place of refuge for John Wentworth, the 
last Royal Governor of New Hampshire, prior to his flight to Boston.

Continued on Continuation Sheet 1
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (continued) 
Statement of significance

During the remainder of the War for Independence there was no activity at the 
Castle, now renamed Fort: Hancock and under the jurisdiction of the State of 
New Hampshire. In 1808/the old 18th century fortification, which had been 
ceded to the federal government was rebuilt and renamed Fort Constitution in 
honor of our newly formed government. The work on the new harbor defense was 
done under the superintendence of LeBaron, a military engineer, and the post 
commander, Baron John Baptiste de Walbach, an artillery officer in the U.S. 
Army. Fort Constitution was continuously garrisoned down to the Civil War; and 
during the War itself by successive companies of heavy artillery. Efforts to 
modernize the fort/were made during the Civil War. Alteration began on 
November 16, 1862r the brick and rock 1808 wall on the east side of the fort 
was demolished and replaced by a strong granite wall containing some 30 gun 
casements. Work on this project was still in progress when the war ended. 
Between the Civil and Spanish-American Wars it was reduced to caretaker 
status but reactivated during the latter conflict. It then became a base for 
coast artillery until 1950.

The State of New Hampshire acquired Fort Constitution, which comprises about 
two acres of land for State Park purposes, in 1960. Archeological excavations 
in 1968-1970 confirmed the locations of buildings constructed in 1808 as well 
as evidence of pre-Constitution occupations. At the present time, the Divisioi 
of Parks is making the area safe for visitors; it will be open to the public 
this coming June.
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